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ANGUS FRASER, M.D.,

CONSCULTING PHYSICIAN, ABERDEEN ROYAL INFIRMARY.
THE many friends of Dr. Angus Fraser and the hundreds
of medical graduates of Aberdeen scattered all over the
world will hear with feelings of deep regret of his death,
which occurred on April 2nd at his residelnce in Aberdeen;
his outstanding personality and his untiring services
for medical education and the medical charities earned
thengratitude of the whole community, and commanded
the respect and admiration of those who were privileged
to know him.
Born in Aberdeen on Christmas Day, 1838, the son of a

successful merchant,
lie received his
early education in
Aberdeen, and' took
hiis Arts Course in
Marisehal College.
After a distin-
guished career,
in which he gained
the Boxhill Mathe-
matical Bursary, he
graduated M.A. ill
1858. In 1862 he
graduated with
honours in medi-
cinie, and continued
his medical studiesA
for some time in the
hospitals of Paris.
On his return to his
native place he
acted for- two years
as Assistant to Pro-
fessor Brazier in
the Chair of Che-
muistry. Shortly
after commencing
the practice of his
profession, lie was
appointed one of
the thysicians of
the Aberdeen Dis-
penisary, which post
he held until 1871,
when he was ap-
pointed one of the
Physicians of the
Aberdeen Royal
Infirmary. Here -ie
found the field for
hiis life's worki, anid
for the long period
of thlirty-eight years
lie wvas an honoured
and zealous worker,
bring ng healing and
comfort to thle sick,
and filling with
nthusiasn ihun
reds of eager stu- 1'lootograpi ml]j DYR ANcOu

dlents who flocked
to benefit by his teaching. And fe~w mn-en were better
equipped for the work of clinical teaching than Dr.
Fraser. He was an accomplished chemist, and his in-
vestigations on urinary calculi and the constituents of
urine were adlmirable pieces of work. At a time when
the n-iicroscope was little used Dr. Fraser was an expert
miciroscopist and a pathologist of no mean order. His
acquaintance -%w,it-i niledical literature e as wide and
miinute, and when to those acquirenients were added that
of an acute, logical intellect, and a keen sy,mpathy wit
studenits, it was -not to be wondered that he became the
Cli'nical Teach-er of ,the Medical School and the favourite
of the, students'.
For Dr. Fraser was a sttudents' maln, niot alone fromn his

sympathy with them, nlor for h-is stores of knowledge
placed at their disposal, but for his approachableness and

ITS

comradeship. No air of mystery sturrounded himn. There
was no aloofness. He was one of themselves. In the
ward, though ready to communicate, lie was as willing to
receive and discuss. Here he was at his best, and it was
an interesting and rather amusing sight to see him and his
students grouped round a patient, with heads close to-
gether, listening for some obscure bruit through hiis
multiple stethoscope, humorously called "Fraser's
octopus."
And to tlle end of his career Dr. Fraser remained in tlhe

front rank as a clinical teacher. He worked hard and
read extensively, and his medical library was perhaps the
finest private library in Scotland. (It has been bequeathed
to the Aberdeen Medico-Chirurgical Society.) When the
Chair of Pathology was founded in the University, he
attended the practical class to get in touch with the latest

methods in patlh-
- ology and bacteri-
: ology. His room in

the infirmary was
richly equipped with
every apparatus to
assist him in his
work, and his stu-
dents had oppor-
tunities of seeing
and practising
methods of investi-
gation in bacteri-
ology, chemistry,
aud pathology which
are usually handed
over to specialists
on these subjects.
In treatment his

mnethods were simple
and conservative.
Although willing, to
try the newer reme-

*dies he p'referred
the old, and knew
exactly what he
could accomplish by

Not the least of
the services hoe
rendered to the in-
firmary was that
which followed ani
after-dinner speech
delivered nearly
thirty years ago,
in which he criti-
cized its equLipment
and its manage--
ment. Though his
remarks were ill
received by the
directorate at the
Lime, they led to an
alteration in thio

*management, to re-
construction, anid an
extension of the
buildings, which

FRAsEIR. M.eoers Morgano Aberdeeun have culminated in
the modern and up-

to-date pile which is a credit to the city and to the
medical school.
Another of the medical charities with which Dr. Fraser's

name must always be intimately assoeiated is the District
Nursing Association. Along with Miss Catherine Lumsden
he took a leading part in its inauguration, and he occupiecl
the chair of management from "the commencement till
about three years ago. Through his efforts the present
home was procured and furnished, and his patronage was
a guarantee to the community of the value of the scheme.
There was deep regret wlhen he felt the burden of years
made it necessary to sever his connexion with this
institution.
As. tine passed he built up a large private practice,

and becanme the leading consultant in the North of Scot-
land. His personality, his skill, and his optimism begat
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confidence, and brouLght cheer where lhe cotldknot bring
healing. He was no alarmist to magnify the ininor
u i-ments, anid he used lhumorouislyr to say that some of his
raiients refused to send for him becauise all lie did for them
was to puit them to bed.
From his student days he retained hiis connexion witlh the

University, serving it as Lecturer, Examiner, Assessor, and
Representative on the General Medical Council, and took
a keen interest in all connected with muedical education
and university work. To these hle brouglit a buLsiness
capacity, energy, and an intinmate knowledre of the require-
ments of the times that were invaluable in slhaping the
fututlre of medical education. He was Examiner in Medi-
cine froml 1869 to 1872. In 1839 lhe was elected one of the
Assessors of the University CouLrt, whiclh office lie lheld
ulnopposed iuntil last year. He was appointed University
Representative to the General Medical Council in 1892,
and was Convener of the Finance Committee, taking an
active part in tlhe Universitv extension. In 1901 the
Uiniversity showedl its appreciation of hlis services by
conferring on him the degree of LL.I).
-In politics Dr. Fraser was- ain advanced Lib3ral. He

served for several years as Clhairman of St. Nicholas Ward
Coimimittee, and was Chairman of tlhe Aberdeen Liberal
Association when the split in the Liberal Party occurred
over Home Rule. He was an ideal chairmau, and turbut-
lent spirits felt that a stronig lhan(d grasped the reins. He
was active in securing the return to Parliament of his
friend, the Right Honourable James Bryce, witlh whom,
ancd with Mrs. Bryce, Dr. Fraser ha(l a warm friendship.
His politics, unfortunately, formed a bar to his obtaining
the Chair of Medicine in the University after the deatlh of
Dr. Smit-h Shand, as soffiewhat uingenerously a section of
his political opponents strenuouisly opposed what wouild
have been a most popular and well-deserved appointment
and a-generous acknowledgement of the merits of an
opponent. This distppointment (lid not embitter Dr.
Firaser in the least, nor tuLrn him aside froml Iris worlk. His
Liberalism increased with his years, and only a few weeks
before hiis death he remarked to the w-riter lhow muclh he
was in sympathy with many proposals of thie present time
that were regartled as socialistic and extremse, and hiis
belief that they would become comnionplaccs in the politics
of the next generation.

Dr. Fraser was Phvsician to tlie Aberdeein Deaf and
Duimb Institution, Medical Officer of thie Aberdeen Post
Office Staff, and Certifying Surgeon for the Factories.
For twenty-eight years he was connected witlh the
Voltunteer movement, and on hlis retiral lield the office of
Brigade Surgeon-Lieutenant-Colonel in tIre lst Volunteer
Battalion Gordon Highlauders.

Dr. Fraser was uin ii-rried, ancl is sutrvived bv his sister,
Mrs. Adamson, 'wi(low of the late Rev. T. N. Adaison,
l3arnhill, Brouglty Ferry.

One whlo was closely associated with Dr. Fraser writes:
Although Dr. Angus Fraser hiad beeni living in retire-

ment for the past three years or so, still tlhe news of hiis
deatlh gave rise to the fe3ling of personal loss to very m.any.
to whom his figure had been so familiar dtiring thie long
period of his professional life as plhysician, or with -whon-
lie had been actively engaged in the admllinistration of
public institutions or in political matters. His was a
personality which made itself felt in whatever sphere of
action he was for tlle tim3 being emnployed, and which
showed itself, perhaps, most happily wvhen lie was in Ihis
hospital wards.
As a clinical teacher lie had a hliglh alnd -well-deserved

reputation amongst his colleaguLes andc his students, anid
many of the latter, now scattered far and w'ide, have ev-er
cagerly given testimony to his powers of exposition. He
wTas accurate in diagnosis, clear and nleat-handdcl in
demonstration, ready to try with an open mind all niew
instruments of precision, possessed of a wonderfully
accurate memory of methods and of cases. From hlis early
undergraduate days onwards lie- showed sp&cial interest in
chemistry, wlichi for a period he taiught in the uiniversity
during the absence of the professor, and lie was always
ready to employ his knowledge in the clinical observation
of complex cases involving accturate u'rinary analysis,
which was a field he had made peculiarly his own.
Furthermoie, in the early days of pathology as an exact
science he succeeded in making himself familiar with

section cutting and staining, and became an expert micro-
scopist; so that the establishmiient of a Chair of Pathology
in the uiniversity was welconiied bv Ihim. and he became
a member of the first class taught by the late Professor
Hamilton, although by that time lie was busily cngaged in
the practice of his profession and had charge of wards in
the hospital.
His ability was early recognized by his teachers, and

the late Dr. KilgouLr, whose name is still familiar amonast
us as a master of miedicine, showed hiim especial favour,
so that in the course of time Dr. Fraser became the
natural successor to hiis practice, an(d very soon attained
a wide repuitatioi as a conisultanit in 'tie Nortli of Scotland.

Whlile thits busily emiiployed in teaclhing andl in hiis
private wvork lhe found his relaxation, for the most part, in
hiis library, wlichl ol the medical side was remarkably
extensive, being drawn from English, American, and
French sources, and in the ligh!test of current literature,
a tiste for which lie slhared with at least one very well-
known lithratcur wlhose views on the subject are well
known to many.
He was interested in all the niew devices wlhich could

be turned to account in his teaching, and, indeed, in all
things of niodern mechanical type, fromn stetlhoscopes to
typewriters. lithographing and printing outfits, gramo-
phones, an(d motor cars, of wlhich he always had the latest
approved models. So also, in his readinig, though by no
nieans unmindfuLl of the classic clinical teachers for wliomn
he had the greatest reverence combined with an accurate
k iowledge of tlheir writings, new editions immediately on
their publication replaced the older ones, were carefully
buit rapidly rlad, and the trtue as well as the new critically
exatmineJ andL retained for use.
He was essenitially of the towni, and took hiis lholidays-

whic-h in late years becamie infrequent-for tihe most part
in London and Paris, wlhere he liauntecl booksliops and
inst';ument makers, to retuirn honiie eager to test some new
acqulisitiont in Ihis wards or in his book-room.
When hlis hlealth made it imperative for hini to give uip

h-s work, the partiilg witlh hiis hospital duties gave him the
sorest pain, and very soon thereafter he confessed that tlhe
sight of new medical publications had become alniiost un-
bearable secing that they were no longer to be of practical
value to hiim. Still to the very end his table andl even hiis
bed was littered witlh medical journals, book catalogues,
ancd works of reference, of which he hiad a marvellous
assortment.

DuLriilg hiis active life lie was an enthusiastic member of
the variou-is medical societies of the city anid district,
whlere hiis genial criticism -was a distinct featuire of the
inleetings, wlhile Ihis presence was always welcome at tlle
alnnal ditinners.

Dr. Fraser's advice in all matters of (lifficulty was always
at the seorvice of hiis professional bretlhren and friends, by
wlhomil it was greatly valtued, and in this respect as in many
otlhers his loss will be severely felt.

WILLIAM HENRY FOLKER, F.R.C.S.EN(.,
CO'NSULTI(NG SURPGEON, NORITH STAFFORDSHIRE INFIRMARY.

WE regret to record the death of Mr. W. H. Folker,
F.R.C.S.Eng., whichl took place at h1is residence, Bedford
House, Hanley, Staffs., on March 26tlh, inl his 86tll year.
The end was not unexpected, as he had lapsed into
complete invalidism for tlhe last thlree years.
Mr. Fo'ker was born at Briglhton in 1826, and was

ediucated at New College School, Oxford, under George
Valentine Cox, M.A. Subsequently he was apprenticed,
as was then iiecessary, to James Fernandez Clarke, wlho
was then oni the staff of the Lancet; he became a student
at Charing Cross Hospital, where he gained several prizes,
including the final silver medal for clinical work. He also
studied in Paris under Trousseau, Velpean;, N6laton,
Malgaigne, Ricord, and Dubois.
In 1851 lhe took the dliploma of M.R.C.S.Eng, and in

1853 was elected House-Surgeon to the North Staffordl-
shire Infirmary, which post he resigned three years later
ini ord6r to begin general practice in Hanley. Btit his
dissociation from the hospital was not of long duration,for in 1858he was elected to the visiting staff as Honorary
Surgeon, amid held that office until 1890. From that d tto
until 1892 he undertook the duties of Surgeon to the newly-
formed Ophthalmic Department, and th}n retired as
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